#### The Regents of the University of California

#### **COMMITTEE ON COMPENSATION**

March 19, 2009

The Committee on Compensation met on the above date at the Commons, Riverside Campus.

Members present: Regents Cole, Johnson, Kozberg, and Varner; Ex officio members Blum

and Yudof; Advisory members Croughan and Stovitz

In attendance: Regents De La Peña, Gould, Island, Lansing, Makarechian, Reiss, Ruiz,

Schilling, Scorza, Shewmake, and Wachter, Regents-designate Bernal and Nunn Gorman, Faculty Representative Powell, Secretary and Chief of Staff Griffiths, Associate Secretary Shaw, General Counsel Robinson, Chief Investment Officer Berggren, Chief Compliance and Audit Officer Vacca, Interim Provost Pitts, Executive Vice President Lapp, Senior Vice President Stobo, Vice Presidents Dooley, Lenz, and Sakaki, Chancellors Bishop, Blumenthal, Drake, Fox, Kang, Vanderhoef, White, and Yang,

and Recording Secretary Johns

The meeting convened at 11:50 a.m. with Committee Chair Varner presiding.

#### 1. **PUBLIC COMMENT**

There were no speakers wishing to address the Committee.

#### 2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

Upon motion duly made and seconded, the minutes of the special meeting of January 14, the meeting of February 5, and the joint meeting of the Committees on Compensation and Finance of February 5, 2009 were approved.

### 3. APPROVAL OF INDIVIDUAL COMPENSATION ACTIONS AS DISCUSSED IN CLOSED SESSION

The President recommended:

A. Term Appointment Salary and Interim Re-slotting for J. Nicholas Entrikin as Vice Provost – International Studies, Los Angeles Campus

Approval of the following items in connection with a term appointment for J. Nicholas Entrikin as Vice Provost – International Studies, Los Angeles campus:

(1) Interim re-slotting of the position as recommended by Mercer Human Resource Consulting, currently at SLCG Grade 106 (Minimum \$154,200,

- Midpoint \$195,200, Maximum \$236,100) to SLCG Grade 107 (Minimum \$172,300, Midpoint \$218,700, Maximum \$265,000).
- (2) Effective March 1, 2009, Mr. Entrikin's acting appointment to this position will conclude and he will begin serving a term appointment in this same position up to June 30, 2011.
- (3) Compensation for this term appointment will be based upon Mr. Entrikin's adjusted professorial salary and an 11.5 percent administrative stipend.
  - a. Between March 1 and June 30, 2009, Mr. Entrikin's adjusted faculty salary (\$206,900) plus an amount equivalent to an 11.5 percent administrative stipend (\$23,794) result in a term appointment salary of \$230,694 rounded to \$230,700 annually. This appointment salary is the same as that paid to Mr. Entrikin during his current acting appointment in this position.
  - b. Between July 1, 2009 and June 30, 2011, Mr. Entrikin's adjusted faculty salary (\$227,590) and an 11.5 percent administrative stipend (\$26,173) result in a term appointment salary of \$253,763 rounded to \$253,800 annually.
- (4) If an adjustment to the academic base salary is made prior to the termination of this appointment, the salary will be re-calculated against the new adjusted academic base salary.

#### Additional items of compensation include:

- Per policy, standard pension and health and welfare benefits and standard senior management benefits (including senior management life insurance, executive business travel insurance, and executive salary continuation for disability).
- Per policy, ineligible to participate in the Senior Management Supplemental Benefit Program due to tenured faculty appointment.
- Per policy, accrual of sabbatical credits as a member of tenured faculty.

The compensation described above shall constitute the University's total commitment until modified by the Regents and shall supersede all previous oral or written commitments. All compensation (as defined in the Regents' 1993 Principles for Review of Executive Compensation) in this recommendation will be released to the public immediately following approval by the Regents.

## B. Interim Re-slotting and Appointment Salary for Henry E. Brady as Dean – Goldman School of Public Policy, Berkeley Campus

Approval of the following items in connection with the appointment of Henry E. Brady as Dean – Goldman School of Public Policy, Berkeley campus:

- (1) Interim re-slotting of the position as recommended by Mercer Human Resource Consulting, currently at SLCG Grade 106 (Minimum \$154,200, Midpoint \$195,200, Maximum \$236,100) to SLCG Grade 108 (Minimum \$192,300, Midpoint \$244,900, Maximum \$297,400).
- (2) Per policy, appointment salary of \$283,200. This represents a 15.0 percent increase in Mr. Brady's July 1, 2009, adjusted faculty salary of \$246,228 (SLCG Grade 108: Minimum \$192,300, Midpoint \$244,900, Maximum \$297,400). He will not be eligible for annual merit/equity consideration until October 2010.
- (3) This appointment is at 100 percent time and effective July 1, 2009.

Additional items of compensation include:

- Per policy, standard pension and health and welfare benefits and standard senior management benefits (including senior management life insurance, executive business travel insurance, and executive salary continuation for disability).
- Per policy, ineligible to participate in the Senior Management Supplemental Benefit Program due to tenured faculty appointment.
- Per policy, accrual of sabbatical credits as a member of tenured faculty.

The compensation described above shall constitute the University's total commitment until modified by the Regents and shall supersede all previous oral or written commitments. All compensation (as defined in the Regents' 1993 Principles for Review of Executive Compensation) in this recommendation will be released to the public immediately following approval by the Regents.

## C. Interim Re-slotting, Appointment of and Compensation for John Gary Falle as Associate Vice President – Federal Government Relations, Office of the President

Approval of the following items in connection with the appointment of and compensation for John Gary Falle as Associate Vice President – Federal Government Relations, Office of the President:

(1) Interim re-slotting of the Associate Vice President – Federal Government Relations at SLCG Grade 108 (Minimum \$192,300, Midpoint \$244,900, Maximum \$297,400), as recommended by Mercer Human Resource

Consulting.

- (2) Appointment of John Gary Falle as Associate Vice President Federal Government Relations, Office of the President, at 100 percent time, effective March 23, 2009.
- (3) Per policy, a 10.4 percent increase in base salary bringing the annual base salary from \$244,500 to \$270,000 (SLCG Grade 108: Minimum \$192,300, Midpoint \$244,900, Maximum \$297,400).
- (4) Per policy, eligibility to participate in the University's Mortgage Origination Program.

Additional items of compensation include:

- Per policy, standard pension and health and welfare benefits and standard senior management benefits (including senior management life insurance, executive business travel insurance, and executive salary continuation for disability).
- Per policy, a 5 percent monthly contribution to the Senior Management Supplemental Benefit Program.
- Per policy, Administrative Fund for official entertainment and other purposes permitted by University policy.

The compensation described above shall constitute the University's total commitment until modified by the Regents and shall supersede all previous oral or written commitments. All compensation (as defined in the Regents' 1993 Principles for Review of Executive Compensation) in this recommendation will be released to the public immediately following approval by the Regents.

## D. Stipend Extension for Samuel Hawgood as Acting Dean – School of Medicine, San Francisco Campus

Approval of the following compensation for Samuel Hawgood as Acting Dean – School of Medicine, San Francisco campus:

- (1) As an exception to policy, an extension of the existing stipend (currently approved through June 30, 2009), effective July 1, 2009, through June 30, 2010, or until the effective date of the appointment of a permanent Dean, whichever occurs first, and including up to a three-month transition period. This appointment is at 100 percent time. This represents an exception to policy which allows for an administrative stipend to be paid for up to 12 months.
- (2) Per policy, continuation of the existing annual administrative stipend of \$181,425 (94 percent) to increase his current faculty base salary of

\$192,300 and his Health Sciences Compensation Plan (HSCP) pay of \$195,475 to an annual salary of \$569,200 (SLCG Grade 114: Minimum \$372,900, Midpoint \$483,400, Maximum \$593,800). This level of compensation is needed in order to provide Dr. Hawgood with a market-appropriate level of total income, in recognition of the necessary reduction of clinical revenue he will realize while he continues temporary administrative Dean's duties and reduces his clinical practice.

(3) The stipend amount of \$181,425 is to remain constant with any and all salary adjustments, inclusive of faculty increases per the approved program's step parameters.

#### Additional items of compensation include:

- Per policy, standard pension and health and welfare benefits.
- Per policy, accrual of sabbatical credits as a member of tenured faculty.
- Per policy, ineligible to participate in the Senior Management Supplemental Benefit Program due to tenured faculty appointment.

The compensation described above shall constitute the University's total commitment until modified by the Regents and shall supersede all previous oral or written commitments. All compensation (as defined in the Regents' 1993 Principles for Review of Executive Compensation) in this recommendation will be released to the public immediately following approval by the Regents.

## E. Interim Re-slotting and Promotion for John A. Meyer as Vice Chancellor – Resource Management and Planning, Davis Campus

Approval of the following items in connection with the interim re-slotting of the Vice Chancellor – Resource Management and Planning position due to significant expansion of responsibilities and the promotional increase for John A. Meyer as Vice Chancellor – Resource Management and Planning, Davis campus:

- (1) Interim re-slotting of the Vice Chancellor Resource Management and Planning position from SLCG Grade 107 (Minimum \$172,300, Midpoint \$218,700, Maximum \$265,000) to SLCG Grade 108 (Minimum \$192,300, Midpoint \$244,900, Maximum \$297,400). This interim re-slotting is a result of a significant reorganization and is consistent with the recommendation of Mercer Human Resource Consulting and will be effective upon Regental approval.
- (2) Per policy, a promotional salary adjustment of \$44,700 (22.3 percent) from \$200,200 to \$244,900 (SLCG Grade 108: Minimum \$192,300, Midpoint \$244,900, Maximum \$297,400). This salary amount is consistent with new Senior Management Group (SMG) policy that indicates that salaries will be within the salary range. Mr. Meyer, in

response to the significant fiscal constraints at the campus and throughout UC, will forgo the increase in salary for a period of no less than one year, until March 1, 2010, waiving the right to any claims pertaining to this increase during this period. The Chancellor, in consultation with Mr. Meyer, will assess the situation again in 2010 to determine if further deferral of the effective date for his promotional increase is appropriate or if the promotional increase will be processed effective March 1, 2010, or later.

#### Additional items of compensation include:

- Per policy, continuation of standard pension and health and welfare benefits and standard senior management benefits (including senior management life insurance, executive business travel insurance, and executive salary continuation for disability).
- Per policy, continuation of 5 percent monthly contribution to the Senior Management Supplemental Benefit Plan.

The compensation described above shall constitute the University's total commitment until modified by the Regents and shall supersede all previous oral or written commitments. All compensation (as defined in the Regents' 1993 Principles for Review of Executive Compensation) in this recommendation will be released to the public immediately following approval by the Regents.

#### F. Change in Senior Management Group Title for Susan J. Rayburn as Chief Contracting Officer – UC Irvine Healthcare, Irvine Campus

Approval of the following item in connection with a change in working title for Susan J. Rayburn as Chief Contracting Officer – UC Irvine Healthcare, Irvine campus. Her current working title is Executive Director, Clinical Enterprise Contracting.

- (1) Change in working title from Executive Director, Clinical Enterprise Contracting to Chief Contracting Officer UC Irvine Healthcare. There is no salary action associated with this title change.
- (2) Pending approval by the Regents, effective December 1, 2008.

#### Additional compensation and related items include:

- Per policy, standard pension and health and welfare benefits and standard senior management benefits (including senior management life insurance, executive business travel insurance and executive salary continuation for disability).
- Per policy, continuation of a 5 percent monthly contribution to the Senior Management Supplemental Benefit Program.

• Per policy, continuation of eligibility to participate in the Clinical Enterprise Management Recognition Plan – up to 20 percent.

The compensation described above shall constitute the University's total commitment until modified by the Regents and shall supersede all previous oral or written commitments. All compensation (as defined in the Regents' 1993 Principles for Review of Executive Compensation) in this recommendation will be released to the public immediately following approval by the Regents.

G. Interim Slotting for Department Manager – Obstetrics, Gynecology and Reproductive Sciences and the Center of Excellence in Women's Health, School of Medicine, San Francisco Campus

Approval of the following interim slotting for Department Manager – Obstetrics, Gynecology, and Reproductive Sciences and the Center of Excellence in Women's Health, School of Medicine, San Francisco campus:

- (1) Interim slotting at SLCG Grade 105 (Minimum \$138,200, Midpoint \$174,300, Maximum \$210,400) as recommended by Mercer Human Resource Consulting.
- (2) Effective March 1, 2009.

This recommendation will be released to the public immediately following approval by the Regents.

H. Interim Slotting for Department Manager – Radiology and Biomedical Imaging, School of Medicine, San Francisco Campus

Approval of the following interim slotting for Department Manager – Radiology and Biomedical Imaging, School of Medicine, San Francisco campus:

- (1) Interim slotting at SLCG Grade 105 (Minimum \$138,200, Midpoint \$174,300, Maximum \$210,400) as recommended by Mercer Human Resource Consulting.
- (2) Effective March 1, 2009.

This recommendation will be released to the public immediately following approval by the Regents.

I. Interim Slotting for Department Manager – Psychiatry/Langley Porter Psychiatric Hospital and Clinics, School of Medicine, San Francisco Campus

Approval of the following interim slotting for Department Manager – Psychiatry/Langley Porter Psychiatric Hospital and Clinics, School of Medicine, San Francisco campus:

- (1) Interim slotting at SLCG Grade 106 (Minimum \$154,200, Midpoint \$195,200, Maximum \$236,100) as recommended by Mercer Human Resource Consulting.
- (2) Effective March 1, 2009.

This recommendation will be released to the public immediately following approval by the Regents.

J. Interim Slotting for Department Manager – Pediatrics, School of Medicine, San Francisco Campus

Approval of the following interim slotting for Department Manager – Pediatrics, School of Medicine, San Francisco campus:

- (1) Interim slotting at SLCG Grade 105 (Minimum \$138,200, Midpoint \$174,300, Maximum \$210,400) as recommended by Mercer Human Resource Consulting.
- (2) Effective March 1, 2009.

This recommendation will be released to the public immediately following approval by the Regents.

K. Interim Slotting for Director – Information Technology-Infrastructure Services, Medical Center, San Francisco Campus

Approval of the following interim slotting for Director – Information Technology-Infrastructure Services, Medical Center, San Francisco campus:

- (1) Interim slotting at SLCG Grade 107 (Minimum \$172,300, Midpoint \$218,700, Maximum \$265,000) as recommended by Mercer Human Resource Consulting.
- (2) Effective March 1, 2009.

This recommendation will be released to the public immediately following approval by the Regents.

### L. Interim Slotting for Vice Provost – Education Partnerships, Office of the President

Approval of the following interim slotting for Vice Provost – Education Partnerships, Office of the President:

- (1) Slotting of the new Senior Management Group position of Vice Provost Education Partnerships at SLCG Grade 108 (Minimum \$192,300, Midpoint \$244,900, Maximum \$297,400), as recommended by Mercer Human Resource Consulting.
- (2) Effective upon approval of the Regents.

This recommendation will be released to the public immediately following approval by the Regents.

[Background material was mailed to Regents in advance of the meeting, and copies are on file in the Office of the Secretary and Chief of Staff.]

Upon motion duly made and seconded, the Committee approved the President's recommendations and voted to present them to the Board.

# 4. APPROVAL OF INTERIM SLOTTING AND COMPENSATION FOR PETER J. TAYLOR AS EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER, OFFICE OF THE PRESIDENT, AS DISCUSSED IN REGENTS ONLY SESSION

The President recommended approval of the following items in connection with the appointment of and compensation for Peter J. Taylor as Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, Office of the President:

- A. Slotting of the new Senior Management Group position of Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer at SLCG Grade 113 (Minimum \$333,900, Midpoint \$431,500, Maximum \$529,100), as recommended by Mercer Human Resource Consulting.
- B. Base salary of \$400,000 (SLCG Grade 113: Minimum \$333,900, Midpoint \$431,500, Maximum \$529,100).
- C. Per policy, reimbursement of actual and reasonable costs associated with temporary living expenses not to exceed \$15,000 over a period of three months.
- D. Per policy, two round-trip coach class airfare trips, plus reasonable accommodation expenses to assist with house-hunting, subject to the limitations under policy for the candidate and his spouse/partner.

- E. Per policy, 100 percent reimbursement of actual and reasonable relocation expenses, to be completed within one year of assuming the position of Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer.
- F. Per policy, a relocation allowance of 16 percent (\$64,000) of base salary, subject to a repayment schedule if Mr. Taylor elects to have the payment made in a lump sum and resigns in the first four years of appointment. If paid in a lump sum, the repayment schedule would be as follows: 100 percent if resignation occurs within the first year of employment, 60 percent within the second year of employment, 30 percent within the third year of employment, and 10 percent within the fourth year of employment.
- G. Per policy, eligibility to participate in the University's Mortgage Origination Program.
- H. Per policy, an automobile allowance in the amount of \$8,916 per annum.

Additional items of compensation include:

- Per policy, standard pension and health and welfare benefits and standard senior management benefits (including senior management life insurance, executive business travel insurance, and executive salary continuation for disability).
- Per policy, a 5 percent monthly contribution to the Senior Management Supplemental Benefit Program.
- Per policy, Administrative Fund for official entertainment and other purposes permitted by University policy.

The compensation described above shall constitute the University's total commitment until modified by the Regents and shall supersede all previous oral or written commitments. All compensation (as defined in the Regents' 1993 Principles for Review of Executive Compensation) in this recommendation will be released to the public immediately following approval by the Regents.

[Background material was provided to Regents in advance of the meeting, and copies are on file in the Office of the Secretary and Chief of Staff.]

Upon motion duly made and seconded, the Committee approved the President's recommendation and voted to present it to the Board.

5. APPROVAL OF COMPENSATION FOR DANIEL M. DOOLEY AS SENIOR VICE PRESIDENT – EXTERNAL RELATIONS, OFFICE OF THE PRESIDENT, AS DISCUSSED IN REGENTS ONLY SESSION

The President recommended approval of the following item in connection with the appointment of Daniel M. Dooley as Senior Vice President – External Relations, Office of the President:

Per policy, effective March 1, 2009, an appointment salary of \$370,000 (SLCG Grade 111: Minimum \$267,700, Midpoint \$344,000, Maximum \$420,100). There is no change in the total compensation for Mr. Dooley, as this new salary is the equivalent of Mr. Dooley's stipend and base salary for his interim role. This amount is consistent with new Senior Management Group policy that dictates that appointment salaries will be within the salary range.

Continuation of the current, additional compensation and related items include:

- Per policy, standard pension and health and welfare benefits, and standard senior management benefits (including senior management life insurance, executive business travel insurance and executive salary continuation for disability).
- Per policy, continuation of the 5 percent monthly contribution to the Senior Management Supplemental Benefit Program.
- Per policy, continuation of an annual automobile allowance of \$8,916 per annum.
- Per policy, continued participation in the Mortgage Origination Loan Program.
- Per policy, continued availability of an Administrative Fund for official entertainment and other purposes permitted by University policy.

The compensation described above shall constitute the University's total commitment until modified by the Regents and shall supersede all previous oral or written commitments. All compensation (as defined in the Regents' 1993 Principles for Review of Executive Compensation) in this recommendation will be released to the public immediately following approval by the Regents.

[Background material was mailed to Regents in advance of the meeting, and copies are on file in the Office of the Secretary and Chief of Staff.]

Upon motion duly made and seconded, the Committee approved the President's recommendation and voted to present it to the Board.

6. APPROVAL OF COMPENSATION FOR VICE PRESIDENT – HUMAN RESOURCES, OFFICE OF THE PRESIDENT

This item was withdrawn.

7. APPROVAL OF EMERITUS STATUS AND COMPENSATION-RELATED ITEMS FOR LARRY N. VANDERHOEF AS PROFESSOR ABOVE SCALE, DAVIS CAMPUS, AS DISCUSSED IN REGENTS ONLY SESSION

The President recommended approval of the following items for Larry N. Vanderhoef as Professor Above Scale, at 100 percent time, Davis campus:

A. Per policy, for the period July 1, 2009, through June 30, 2010, continuation of administrative salary of \$315,000 per annum while he is on paid administrative

leave in lieu of sabbatical leave. This is Chancellor Vanderhoef's current base salary as Chancellor, and is consistent with the provisions of Academic Personnel Policy 758-0 B.(2), which govern these types of leaves. This one-year administrative leave is contingent upon Mr. Vanderhoef returning to a tenured faculty position for a minimum of one year at the completion of this leave.

After a long period of administrative service, Chancellor Vanderhoef will spend the leave retooling his laboratory and attending to other academic requirements as appropriate, including University, community, and public service. In addition, Mr. Vanderhoef will begin writing a book tentatively entitled "Chapters Along the Way", speaking to experiences in higher education leadership.

B. Per policy, conferral of the title of Chancellor Emeritus in recognition of Mr. Vanderhoef's extensive service to the University as Chancellor of the Davis campus.

#### Additional items include:

- Per policy, payment of reasonable and customary moving expenses from his University offices and the University-provided housing to his personal residence. These expenses are estimated at approximately \$7,500.
- Per policy, standard pension and health and welfare benefits.
- Per policy, accrual of sabbatical credits as a member of tenured faculty.

The Davis campus will provide Chancellor Emeritus Vanderhoef with the following, consistent with policies and practices:

- Offices on campus for Chancellor Emeritus Vanderhoef and his staff.
- Staff consisting of an executive assistant, with estimated annual salary expense of approximately \$91,000, not including benefits.
- A non-salary operating budget of \$39,000 for fiscal year 2009-10 consisting of:
  - Approximately \$14,000 in general office expenses.
  - Approximately \$18,000 in international travel-related expenses in support of Chancellor Emeritus Vanderhoef's continuing work in Asia, including Iran, developing student and faculty exchange programs.
  - Approximately \$7,000 in domestic travel-related expenses.
- Required equipment and equipment upgrades for the campus office.
- Continued use of home office equipment for the Chancellor Emeritus. Upgrades to this equipment will be the responsibility of the Chancellor Emeritus.

The compensation described above shall constitute the University's total commitment until modified by the Regents and shall supersede all previous oral or written commitments. All compensation (as defined in the Regents' 1993 Principles for Review of Executive Compensation) in this recommendation will be released to the public immediately following approval by the Regents.

[Background material was mailed to Regents in advance of the meeting, and copies are on file in the Office of the Secretary and Chief of Staff.]

Upon motion duly made and seconded, the Committee approved the President's recommendation and voted to present it to the Board.

8. APPROVAL OF EMERITUS STATUS AND COMPENSATION-RELATED ITEMS FOR J. MICHAEL BISHOP, M.D., AS PROFESSOR ABOVE SCALE, SAN FRANCISCO CAMPUS, AS DISCUSSED IN REGENTS ONLY SESSION

The President recommended approval of the following items for J. Michael Bishop, M.D., as Professor Above Scale, at 100 percent time, San Francisco campus:

- A. Per policy, for the period July 1, 2009, through June 30, 2010, continuation of administrative salary of \$402,200 per annum while he is on paid administrative leave in lieu of sabbatical leave. This is Chancellor Bishop's current base salary as Chancellor, and is consistent with the provisions of Academic Personnel Policy 758-0 B.(2), which govern these types of leaves. This one-year administrative leave is contingent upon Mr. Bishop returning to a tenured faculty position for a minimum of one year at the completion of this leave. After a long period of administrative service, Chancellor Bishop will spend the leave attending to other academic requirements as appropriate, including University, community, and public service.
- B. Per policy, conferral of the title of Chancellor Emeritus in recognition of Mr. Bishop's extensive service to the University as Chancellor of the San Francisco campus.

#### Additional items include:

- Per policy, payment of reasonable and customary moving expenses from his University offices and the University-provided housing to his personal residence. These expenses are estimated at approximately \$10,000.
- Per policy, standard pension and health and welfare benefits.
- Per policy, accrual of sabbatical credits as a member of tenured faculty.

The compensation described above shall constitute the University's total commitment until modified by the Regents and shall supersede all previous oral or written commitments. All compensation (as defined in the Regents' 1993 Principles for Review of Executive Compensation) in this recommendation will be released to the public immediately following approval by the Regents.

[Background material was mailed to Regents in advance of the meeting, and copies are on file in the Office of the Secretary and Chief of Staff.]

Upon motion duly made and seconded, the Committee approved the President's recommendation and voted to present it to the Board.

## 9. ANNUAL REPORT ON COMPENSATED OUTSIDE PROFESSIONAL ACTIVITIES FOR CALENDAR YEAR 2008: INCUMBENTS IN SENIOR MANAGEMENT POSITIONS

[Background material was mailed to Regents in advance of the meeting, and copies are on file in the Office of the Secretary and Chief of Staff.]

Director Larsen reported that there may be an amendment to the report from one individual. This information will be reviewed and presented to the Regents if necessary. He added that this was an information item only and did not require action.

The Annual Report on Compensated Outside Professional Activities for Calendar Year 2008: Incumbents in Senior Management Positions was submitted to the Committee. There was no discussion.

## 10. APPROVAL OF AMENDMENTS TO FREEZE OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT GROUP SALARIES AND SUSPENSION OF BONUS AND CERTAIN OTHER VARIABLE PAY PLANS

The President recommended that the *Proposal to Freeze Senior Management Group Salaries and Suspend Bonus and Certain Other Variable Pay Plans*, approved at the January 2009 Special Meeting of the Regents, be amended to add the following section, which section shall replace and supersede in all respects section 5 of the January 2009 proposal. In all other respects, the January 2009 proposal shall remain as approved in January.

### New Subparagraph 5 of the Proposal to Freeze Senior Management Group Salaries and Suspend Bonus and Certain Other Variable Pay Plans

- 5. Payments for staff participants that are currently pending from fiscal years 2007-08 and any payments attributable to fiscal year 2008-09 in all bonus, incentive or variable pay plans other than the plans addressed in paragraph 4, are subject to the following action:
  - a. For SMG members, all pending bonus payments for fiscal year 2007-08 and any such payments attributable to fiscal year 2008-09 and 2009-10 are cancelled.
  - b. For non-SMG members whose total cash compensation is above \$205,000, all pending bonus payments for fiscal year 2007-08 are cancelled.

- c. For all staff members, consideration of any incentive or variable pay plan payments for fiscal year 2007-08 will be deferred until the end of fiscal year 2009-10, at which time this suspension will be reviewed.
- d. For all staff members, consideration of any incentive or variable pay plan payments attributable to fiscal years 2008-09 and 2009-10 will be deferred until the end of fiscal year 2009-10, at which time this suspension will be reviewed.

If legal or contractual obligations are identified that require processing of a payout, the Regents' approval will be required.

[Background material was mailed to Regents in advance of the meeting, and copies are on file in the Office of the Secretary and Chief of Staff.]

Upon motion duly made and seconded, the Committee approved the President's recommendation and voted to present it to the Board.

### 11. PROPOSED REVISIONS TO SENIOR MANAGEMENT GROUP SALARY AND APPOINTMENT POLICY

The President recommended approval of the changes to the Senior Management Group Policy on Salary and Appointment, as shown in Attachment 1.

The Regents will have the authority to approve any policy revisions upon recommendation by the President. As described in the Approval Authority section of each of the SMG policies, the Responsible Officer, e.g., Executive Vice President – Business Operations, may apply appropriate interpretations to clarify policy, provided that the interpretations do not result in substantive changes to the underlying policy. The Department of Human Resources and Benefits, Office of the President, will work with the Responsible Officer to implement this policy.

[Background material was mailed to Regents in advance of the meeting, and copies are on file in the Office of the Secretary and Chief of Staff.]

Upon motion duly made and seconded, the Committee approved the President's recommendation and voted to present it to the Board.

#### 12. BI-MONTHLY TRANSACTION MONITORING REPORT – MARCH 2009

[Background material was mailed to Regents in advance of the meeting, and copies are on file in the Office of the Secretary and Chief of Staff.]

The Bi-Monthly Transaction Monitoring Report was submitted to the Committee. There was no discussion.

## 13. REPORT OF ACTIONS TAKEN UNDER DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY FOR RECRUITING AND NEGOTIATION PARAMETERS FOR CERTAIN ATHLETIC POSITIONS AND COACHES

[Background material was mailed to Regents in advance of the meeting, and copies are on file in the Office of the Secretary and Chief of Staff.]

The Report of Actions Taken under Delegation of Authority for Recruiting and Negotiation Parameters for Certain Athletic Positions and Coaches was submitted to the Committee. There was no discussion.

Committee Chair Varner recognized and welcomed Mr. Peter J. Taylor, whose appointment and compensation as Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer have been recommended to the Board for its meeting later in the day. He stated that the University looks forward to working with Mr. Taylor.

The meeting adjourned at 11:55 a.m.

Attest:

Secretary and Chief of Staff

## **Senior Management Group Salary and Appointment**



Responsible Officer: Associate Vice President-Human Resources and Benefits

Responsible Office: Human Resources and Benefits Policy and Program Design

Effective Date: January March 1, 2009

**Next Review Date**: To be determined [The Responsible Officer will review the policy annually for update purposes and will conduct a full review at least every three years.]

Who Is Covered: Members of the Senior Management Group, including those with underlying academic appointments. [Note: an effort is underway by Academic Advancement to review compensation and related policies and to develop appropriate monitoring and reporting processes for Deans. Until those policies and processes are developed and approved by The Regents, Deans remain in the Senior Management Group and are covered by the applicable SMG polices and procedures.]

#### **CONTENTS**

**I. Policy Summary** 

**II. Policy Definitions** 

**III. Policy Text** 

IV. Approval Authority

V. Compliance

**Revision History** 

<u>Implementation Procedures</u>

**Related Documents** 

**Frequently Asked Questions** 

#### I. POLICY SUMMARY

This policy provides direction and authority for appointing and classifying Senior Management Group members and establishing, approving, reviewing and revising any salary and/or Salary Grade changes for Senior Management Group (SMG) members.

#### II. POLICY DEFINITIONS

Compensable Factors: Information and data specific to a job or position that is used to evaluate against external market data <u>or and</u> internal comparable positions to determine an appropriate Salary Grade.

Exception to Policy: An action that exceeds what is allowable under current policy or that is not expressly provided for under policy. Any such action must be treated as an exception and must be reviewed and approved by the Regents.

<u>Executive Officer</u>: The <u>University</u> President for the <u>Office of the President</u>, Chancellor, or Laboratory Director.

<u>Performance</u>: The fulfillment of job responsibilities and individual goals and objectives assigned to the incumbent.

<u>Salary Grade</u>: One of the classes, levels or groups into which SMG jobs of the same or similar value are grouped for compensation purposes. All jobs in a salary grade have the same pay range: minimum, midpoint, and maximum.

<u>Salary Range</u>: A range of salaries delineated with a minimum, midpoint, and maximum rate of pay assigned to a given Salary Grade. This represents the competitive range of base salaries for the position.

<u>Senior Management Group</u>: Individuals whose career appointment is in the Senior Management Group personnel program. Employees with a dual academic appointment at 0% shall be considered to possess a career appointment in the Senior Management Group.

<u>Top Business Officer</u>: Executive Vice President Business Operations for the Office of the President, Vice Chancellor for Administration, or the position responsible for the location's financial reporting and payroll as designated by the Executive Officer.

#### III. POLICY TEXT

#### A. Salary Grades and Ranges

1. Establishment of Salary Grades

The University has established a set of salary grades for SMG positions. A position's salary grade is established by:

2/24/2009 2 of 13

- a. determining the position's key functions, responsibilities, and other compensable factors.
- b. evaluating and comparing the position's compensable factors to relevant market data and internal comparable positions.

A position will undergo a review to determine an appropriate salary grade if the duties change substantially, or if the market changes substantially, or if a new position is created. Salary Grade assignments, including changes to salary grades for SMG positions or the creation of a new SMG position, must be approved by The Regents. Refer to Section IV. of this policy for additional information on approval authority.

#### 2. Purpose of Salary Ranges

The salary ranges allow the University to administer and manage the salaries of SMG members in a manner that is competitive with relevant external comparator groups, fosters appropriate internal consistency, and facilitates budget control.

#### 3. Adjustments of Salary Ranges

Salary ranges are reviewed annually and may be adjusted periodically by The Regents to reflect market movement of salaries for comparable positions.

Adjustments to salary ranges do not automatically result in an increase in the salary paid to an SMG member. If the salary ranges are adjusted and an incumbent's salary falls below the minimum of the new salary range, adjustments may be recommended to bring the salary above the minimum, if documented sustained performance and contributions are at or above "Satisfactory" levels. Adjustments may be made in one or more transactions over a period of time to bring the salary above the range minimum and are processed in conjunction with the merit and equity process and as part of that budget allocation.

Adjustments to the Salary Ranges must be approved by The Regents. Refer to Section IV. of this policy for additional information on approval authority.

#### 4. Position in Salary Range

The University's ability to pay competitively (total compensation) in regional and national marketplaces ultimately affects its ability to attract, motivate and retain the talent necessary to achieve the University's mission. It is the University's objective to offer competitive salary opportunities which are reflected in market competitive salary ranges. A number of factors will be considered to determine appropriate pay and position in the salary range for individuals, including documented sustained performance and contributions, internal peer comparability, external market comparability, scope and breadth of experience and responsibilities, as well as other factors. Please note that there are no automatic salary adjustments for individuals whose pay does not comport with the following guidelines. Any adjustments must be managed through existing programs and protocol, as outlined in Sections B. – J. below.

2/24/2009 3 of 13

Generally, salaries above the minimum and below the midpoint reflect an individual who may be learning the job's requirements and still improving his or her performance and contribution.

Salaries within 10 percent of the midpoint of the assigned salary range generally reflect competitive salaries in the marketplace for a fully competent, knowledgeable individual with documented sustained successful performance.

Salaries above the midpoint and below the maximum generally reflect an incumbent who has significant experience in the position, who is proficient in the required skills, adept at managing the typical responsibilities, and who has documented sustained high levels of performance.

Placement above the salary range maximum may occur in unusual circumstances. Since the salary ranges reflect the full scope of market competitive salary rates for a position, if a proposed salary would be above the range maximum, the position should first be evaluated to ensure the grade assigned to the position reflects an up-to-date, market-competitive range of pay. In situations where a proposed action would place the salary above the range maximum, and the salary range appropriately reflects competitive pay, the specific facts and circumstances of the recommendation would need to be evaluated. In the event an incumbent's base salary exceeds the salary range maximum, the individual's performance reviews, internal and external comparability reviews, and other considerations are to be assessed in conjunction with the justification.

#### B. Appointments

#### 1. Criteria for Appointment

SMG positions must be filled through the appointment of applicants who, in the judgment of the hiring authority, possess the qualifications required to perform the duties of the position most effectively.

Refer to the <u>Policy on Appointment of Chancellors</u> [link] and the <u>Procedures for Appointment of Laboratory Directors</u> [link] for additional appointment information. Procedures for appointment of academic Deans and Provosts are specified in *Academic Personnel Policy 240, Deans and Provosts*.[link]

#### 2. Authority for Individual Appointment

Individual appointments to all SMG positions must be approved by The Regents. Management and Senior Professional (MSP) personnel program members who assume a position in the Senior Management Group will be considered appointees.

#### 3. Authority to Establish or Abolish Senior Management Positions

Establishment or abolishment of SMG positions and assignment of SMG titles must be approved by The Regents.

#### 4. Nature of Appointment

2/24/2009 4 of 13

An SMG appointee serves at-will and an SMG appointment may be terminated at any time with or without cause. An SMG member's at-will status cannot be altered except by amendment of this policy.

An appointment as an SMG member is normally at 100 percent time. A career appointment may be at less than 100 percent time, but cannot be less than 50 percent time, upon approval of The Regents.

#### 5. Assignment of Titles

A working title must be assigned to each SMG position that conveys the organizational level of the position and the nature and scope of the responsibilities assigned. The Regents provide approval for all SMG titles. The Chancellor, Laboratory Director or Executive Vice President for Business Operations for the Office of the President may approve minor changes to SMG titles. These changes will be reported to the Regents in the standard report of actions. Regents must approve major changes to SMG titles.

#### 6. Appointment Salary

The salary of a newly appointed SMG member should be within the salary range for the position. The position in the salary range, as described in Paragraph 4
Section III.A.4. above, at the time of appointment is based on the following factors:

- a. Prior relevant job experience.
- b. Internal salary equity with similar SMG positions.
- c. Internal appointments should include relevant documented performance assessments and appraisals.
- d. The availability of funding.
- e. Market competitive base salary rates.

Appointment salaries must be approved by The Regents. Refer to Section IV. of this policy for additional information on approval authority.

#### C. Merit Increase

#### 1. Basis for Merit Increase

SMG members are eligible for consideration of an annual merit increase in accordance with University procedures and funding. The merit budgeting process will be conducted annually as part of the larger budgeting process for UC. Market assessments will be conducted to determine the competitive position and budget necessary to properly position UC base salaries with its competitors. Allocations will be based on relative need to achieve that market position and to reward employee contributions.

Annual Merit Budgets will be approved by The Regents. Refer to Section IV. of this policy for additional information on approval authority.

2/24/2009 5 of 13

The amount of an individual's merit increase award is based on the following factors:

- a. The SMG member's annual written performance appraisal and contributions measured against predetermined goals and objectives.
- b. The SMG member's current position within the salary grade range and his or her salary relative to internal comparable positions.
- c. The availability of approved merit funding.
- d. The SMG member should have an appointment date no later than the first day of the final fiscal quarter (April 1) to be eligible for merit increase consideration. If the appointment occurs on or after April 1, the appointment salary or promotional increase of a SMG member should take into consideration his/her merit and contribution in the former position. Refer to Section III. A.4. of this policy for proper salary placement in the range.

Merit increases must be approved by The Regents. Refer to Section IV. of this policy for additional information on approval authority.

#### 2. Performance Appraisal

An SMG member's most recent annual performance appraisal must be at least "Satisfactory" in order to receive a merit increase.

#### 3. Merit Increase Timing

The SMG budget and effective date of annual merit increases are established and approved by The Regents each year and communicated systemwide through Human Resources.

#### D. Promotional Increase

#### 1. Basis for Promotional Increase

A promotion is defined as either a transfer of an SMG member from an existing SMG position to another SMG position at a higher salary grade, or assignment of a higher salary grade to the SMG member's current position to reflect significantly new and higher-level responsibilities. Factors to consider in granting a promotional increase include:

- a. Prior relevant experience, performance which is at least "Above Expectations", and demonstrated capability in meeting the new position's requirements.
- b. The recommended salary in relation to the new salary range midpoint. Generally, a promotional increase should position the incumbent's salary below the midpoint if he or she is still learning the job and is not yet fully competent in all aspects of the job requirements. Salaries within 10 percent of the midpoint of the salary range reflect a fully functioning individual with documented sustained successful performance.
- c. The SMG member's recommended salary in comparison with others in the same or a similar position.

2/24/2009 6 of 13

Promotions and/or promotional increases must be approved by The Regents. Refer to Section IV. of this policy for additional information on approval authority.

#### 2. <u>Limitation on Promotional Increase</u>

- a. A promotional increase may not be awarded as a substitute for all or part of a merit increase.
- b. An SMG member's most recent annual performance appraisal rating must be at least "Above Expectations" to receive a promotional increase.

#### E. Equity Increase

An equity increase may be granted to correct a significant salary inequity in individual circumstances that results from any number of causes, such as rapidly changing external market conditions or a disparity created by new hires in the same or substantially similar jobs who have comparable levels of skills and experience and higher salaries. Equity increases may also be appropriate for individuals whose salary is below the midpoint of their salary range, and whose documented sustained performance is consistently rated at least "Satisfactory".

Equity increases must be approved by The Regents. Refer to Section IV. of this policy for additional information on approval authority.

When equity funds are made available, they are typically available systemwide once per year. The timing and budget of the annual equity increase program is established and approved by The Regents and communicated systemwide through Human Resources. Equity increases outside the annual program will be reviewed on a case-by-case basis and must be approved by The Regents.

#### F. Retention Increase

Retention increase recommendations are rare and must be based on <u>all</u> of the following factors:

- 1. The SMG member is considered a finalist for another position, and his/her immediate departure would result in severe operational, service, or functional disruption in accomplishing the mission of the University and;
- 2. The SMG member's most recent annual performance rating was at least "Satisfactory".

Any retention increase recommendation must be approved by The Regents. Refer to Section IV. of this policy for additional information on approval authority.

#### G. Order of Salary Increases

If more than one salary increase is effective on the same date, actions are processed in the following order:

- 1. Apply a merit increase, and then
- 2. A promotional increase
- 3. Apply any equity increase based upon the appropriate position in the salary range.

2/24/2009 7 of 13

### H. Potential Transfers Between Locations (campus, Laboratory, Office of the President)

A potential transfer between locations occurs when an SMG member considers accepting another comparable SMG position at a location other than his/her present location. Any salary action recommendations must be based on the concepts regarding position in the salary range presented in Section III.A.4. of this policy, including documented sustained performance and contributions. In such an event, and following the SMG member's tentative acceptance of the offer from the new location, the SMG member's current location will be provided with an opportunity to meet, but not exceed the wage offer of the new location for a comparable position. This section of the salary administration policy does not apply to situations in which an SMG member is contemplating another position which is not deemed to be comparable to his/her current position (e.g., a promotional opportunity or significant departure from the current position). The intent of this arrangement is to emphasize the career opportunities being presented in each offer and de-emphasize the competing salary offers. The Office of the President will serve as the broker of such transfer considerations and discussions.

Any increases or other actions must be approved by The Regents. Refer to Section IV. of this policy for additional information on approval authority.

## I. Transfers and Reclassifications Within the Same Location (campus, Laboratory, Office of the President)

A transfer within the same location occurs when an SMG member changes from one position to another position in the same salary grade. While such lateral moves may be valuable to develop skills or enhance future promotion opportunities, typically they are not accompanied by an increase in pay at the time of transfer unless there is a significant increase in position scope and responsibilities and documented sustained performance and contributions are at least "Satisfactory".

A reclassification occurs when an incumbent's job changes, with functions added or eliminated, but the majority of the job's functions remain intact. This may or may not result in a grade change. Each situation will be reviewed on a case-by-case basis to determine if a salary increase or decrease is warranted. Documented sustained performance and contributions of at least "Satisfactory" are a consideration in such determinations.

Transfer and reclassification salary increases or other actions must be approved by The Regents. Refer to Section IV. of this policy for additional information on approval authority.

#### J. Salary Decrease Upon Reduction in Salary Grade

When an individual transfers from an existing SMG position to another SMG position at a lower salary grade, or when an individual's current SMG position is assigned to a lower salary grade, any recommendation for a salary decrease is at the discretion of the President, Chancellor, or Laboratory Director. Documented sustained performance and contributions of at least "Satisfactory" are a consideration in such determinations. Salary decreases must be approved by The Regents in accordance with Section IV. of this policy.

2/24/2009 8 of 13

#### K. Temporary Assignments and Administrative Stipends

An employee may be asked to temporarily assume an SMG position. An SMG member may be asked to temporarily assume an SMG position at a salary grade higher than his/her career appointment. In rare instances, an SMG member may be asked to temporarily assume only a portion of the responsibilities of another SMG position in addition to his/her current responsibilities. In these circumstances, when the temporarily assumed responsibilities are deemed to be *significantly greater in scope and level* and when the employee is held fully accountable for the temporary responsibilities, the individual may receive a stipend so long as their documented performance evaluations warrant the stipend.

These assignments and the accompanying stipends (if appropriate) may be approved for up to twelve months in duration. Extensions of such arrangements constitute an exception to policy and may only be granted in intervals not to exceed twelve additional months. The purpose of such limitations is to ensure that adequate measures are being undertaken to install permanent stewardship of senior leadership positions.

The determination of the stipend amount, if any, must be based upon guidance provided in this policy regarding incumbent range placement. Additionally, the temporary assignment of a faculty member to an SMG position must take into account the adjusted faculty salary which is inclusive of an assumption of eleven and one-half months of salary (typically involving the addition of two and one-half summer ninths to a nine month academic appointment). An administrative stipend must not be included in the determination of the base salary for purposes of calculating an incumbent's merit increase.

Any stipends or other actions must be approved by The Regents. Refer to Section IV. of this policy for additional information on approval authority.

#### L. Salary Restriction

An SMG member who is appointed at 100 percent time must not receive additional cash compensation from an entity managed exclusively by the University (e.g., Lawrence Berkeley National Laboratory, a UC campus, or a UC medical center) for any work or services, regardless of source or type of payment. However, allowable circumstances in which an SMG member may receive additional compensation are as follows:

- 1. Payments for teaching University Extension courses (UNEX).
- 2. Administrative stipends payable under Section K. of this policy.
- 3. Incentive and recognition awards payable in accordance with approved incentive plans and recognition awards provisions described in the <u>Cash Incentive and Recognition Awards Policy</u> [link]. Health Science Compensation Plan participants are not eligible for additional incentive awards outside of APM 670.
- 4. Payments and income derived through Outside Professional activities, in accordance with the *Outside Professional Activities Policy* [link].

2/24/2009 9 of 13

5. Academic Deans and Provosts may receive a 1/12 payment for summer research based on their annual SMG salary. In such instances, accrued vacation is forfeited for the year in which the 1/12 compensation for research is received.

Actions or payments as noted above must be approved by The Regents. Refer to Section IV. of this policy for additional information on approval authority.

#### M. Home Loan Eligibility

Eligibility to participate in the University home loan program, which conforms with all aspects of the home loan policy, may be approved by the Chancellor, Lawrence Berkeley National Laboratory Director or, for the Office of the President, the Executive Vice President Business Operations. Loans with non-standard terms must be approved by the Regents. Program parameters can be viewed at <a href="http://www.ucop.edu/facil/olp/products.html">http://www.ucop.edu/facil/olp/products.html</a> with further details available from the Director – Office of Loan Programs or the campus or Laboratory Housing Programs Representative.

Eligibility for participation in the University Home Loan Program does not constitute loan approval.

#### The Regents will be informed of Home Loan activity as follows:

- 1. The Office of the President, Office of Loan Programs will provide an annual report to the Regents entitled *University of California Annual Report on University Housing Assistance Programs*. This report will include the number, total dollar amount, and average loan amount of loans made to members of the Senior Management Group during the fiscal year.
- 2. <u>Human Resources will provide eligibility information and the maximum loan amount in the report to the Regents entitled *Bi-monthly Transaction Monitoring Report*.</u>
- 3. <u>Human Resources will provide information on the current, actual loan amounts in their annual report to the Regents entitled *Annual Report on Executive Compensation*.</u>
- 4. Home Loan Program eligibility for newly hired Senior Management Group employees will be identified in the original Regents item pertaining to their appointment and compensation.

#### IV. APPROVAL AUTHORITY

#### A. Implementation of the Policy

The Associate Vice President—Human Resources and Benefits is the Responsible Officer for this policy and has the authority to implement the policy. The Responsible Officer may apply appropriate interpretations to clarify policy provided that the interpretations do not result in substantive changes to the underlying policy.

2/24/2009 10 of 13

The Office of the President Human Resources will work with the Responsible Officer of each policy to implement each policy.

#### B. Revisions to the Policy

The Regents is the Policy Approver for this policy and has the authority to approve any policy revisions upon recommendation by the President.

The Associate Vice President–Human Resources and Benefits has the authority to initiate revisions to the policy, consistent with approval authorities and applicable Bylaws [link] and Standing Orders [link] of The Regents.

The Executive Vice President–Business Operations has the authority to ensure that policies are regularly reviewed and updated, and are consistent with the Senior Management Group Compensation Policy Principles and other governance policies.

#### C. Approval of Actions

The President must endorse and the Regents must approve aAll salary and appointment actions, <u>-including</u> actions within this policy, <u>those</u> that exceed this policy, or <u>those</u> that are not expressly provided for under any policy. <del>must be approved by The Regents.</del>

It is expected that an appropriate compensation study will accompany any request for an SMG member's salary increase.

#### V. COMPLIANCE

#### A. Compliance with the Policy

The Associate Vice President–Human Resources and Benefits is accountable for monitoring compliance with this policy.

The following roles are designated at each location to implement compliance monitoring responsibility for this policy:

The Top Business Officer and/or the Executive Officer at each location will designate the local <u>management</u> office to be responsible for the ongoing reporting of policy compliance, including collecting all relevant compensation package activity, and creating specified regular compliance reports (such as a monthly compensation compliance report) for review by the location's Top Business Officer.

The Top Business Officer establishes procedures to collect and report information, reviews the specified regular compliance reports (such as a monthly compensation compliance report) for accuracy and completeness, reviews policy exceptions and/or anomalies to ensure appropriate approval has been obtained, and submits a copy of the compliance report to the Executive Officer for signature.

The Executive Officer is accountable for monitoring and enforcing compliance mechanisms, ensuring monitoring procedures are in place, approving the specified regular compliance reports (such as a monthly compensation compliance report), and sending notice of final approval for the reports to the Senior Management Compensation Office, Top Business Officer, and Local Resources.

2/24/2009 11 of 13

The Associate Vice President–Human Resources and Benefits is accountable for reviewing the administration of this policy. The Senior Vice President–Chief Compliance and Audit Officer will periodically audit and monitor compliance to these policies, and results will be reported to senior management and The Regents.

#### B. Noncompliance with the Policy

Noncompliance with the policy is handled in accordance with The Regents' <u>Guidelines for Corrective Actions Related to Compensation Practices</u> [link] and <u>Guidelines for Resolution of Compensation and Personnel Issues Resulting from the Findings of Audits and Management Reviews</u>. [link]

Noncompliance is reported in the monthly compliance report from each location as approved by the Executive Officer and reviewed by the Senior Vice President–Chief Compliance and Audit Officer and The Regents and The Regents at least three times per fiscal year at each Regents' meeting.

#### **REVISION HISTORY**

As a result of the issuance of this policy, the following documents are rescinded as of the <u>original</u> effective date of this policy. The effective date of the <u>original policy was intended to be January 1, 2009, but was approved for September 1, 2008</u>:

- Personnel Policies for Senior Managers II-30 (Salary), dated July 1, 1996,
- Personnel Policies for Senior Managers II-21 (Appointment)
- Delegation of Authority 2113 (as it applies to SMG members), dated February 14, 2000

#### IMPLEMENTATION PROCEDURES

#### RELATED DOCUMENTS

- Policy on Appointment of Chancellors (referenced in Section III.B.1. of this policy)
- <u>Procedures for Appointment of Laboratory Directors</u> (referenced in Section III.B.1. of this policy)
- <u>Academic Personnel Policy 240, Deans and Provosts</u> (referenced in Section III.B.1. of this policy)
- <u>Cash Incentive and Recognition Awards Policy</u> (referenced in Section III.L. of this policy)
- Outside Professional Activities Policy (referenced in Section III.L. of this policy)

2/24/2009 12 of 13

- <u>Bylaws of The Regents</u> [include the specific Bylaws that are applicable] (referenced in Section IV.B. of this policy)
- <u>Standing Orders of The Regents</u> [include the specific Standing Orders that are applicable] (referenced in Section IV.B. of this policy)
- Other Governance Policies (referenced in Section IV.C. of this policy)
- <u>Guidelines for Corrective Actions Related to Compensation Practices</u> (referenced in Section V.B. of this policy)
- <u>Guidelines for Resolution of Compensation and Personnel Issues Resulting from</u>
   <u>the Findings of Audits and Management Reviews</u> (referenced in Section V.B. of
   this policy)

#### FREQUENTLY ASKED QUESTIONS

#### Temporary Assignments and Administrative Stipends

- Q: If an employee in the Management and Senior Professional (MSP) personnel program temporarily assumes an SMG position, what personnel program applies to the employee?
- A: Individuals serving in an SMG position on an acting or interim basis retain their membership in the personnel program associated with their career appointment. If the employee's career appointment is in the MSP personnel program and the employee agrees to serve in a SMG position on an acting basis, the employee continues to be covered by the provisions of the MSP personnel program.

#### **Definition of "Provost" in Section III L. 5**

Q: Is the definition of "Provost" in this section intended to include the College Provost as well as the Campus Provost?

A: Yes.

#### Definition of "minor" title change in Section III. B. 5

Q: What is the difference between a "minor" and "major" change in title?

A: In general, a major change in title is a change that alters the title prefix; for example, a change from Assistant Vice Chancellor to Vice Chancellor. In general, a minor change in title is a change that alters the title suffix; for example, a change from Assistant Vice Chancellor-Administrative Services to Assistant Vice Chancellor-Administrative Operations. It is possible that a substantial change to the title suffix could constitute a major change.

2/24/2009 13 of 13